
AGENDA FOR 
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 
8:00 A.M. APRIL 3, 2019 

NEUMILLER & BEARDSLEE 
3121 WEST MARCH LANE, SUITE 100  

STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 

Call to Order. 

Roll Call. 

Agenda Items. 

1. Public Comment. Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public may address 
the Board on any issue in the District's jurisdiction. The public may address any item on the 
agenda as it is taken up. 

2. Approval of Minutes. Minutes of the regular meeting of March 6, 2019. 

3. Financial Report. Review, discuss, and accept financial report. 

4. Engineer's Report. Request for directions and approvals. 
(a) Consider new permits requests from homeowners. 
(b) Discussion and Direction regarding the Sediment Removal Project 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2019-02 Designating District Engineer as Authorized 
Representative to Sign and Submit Sediment Removal Project Permit Applications 
for, and on behalf of, District 

5. Temporary Entry/Encroachment Permits. Adopt Resolution 2019-03 Delegating Authority to 
Approve Temporary Entry/Encroachment Permits. 

6. Levee Superintendent Report. Request for directions and approvals. 

7. Newsletter. Request for direction. 

8. Report by Trustees on meetings attended and up coming meetings. Request for direction. 

9. Report and possible action on Progress of Tasks Assigned at Previous Board Meetings. 

10. Discussion and direction on Short-Term and Long-Range Goals. 

11. District Calendar. Discussion and direction. 

12. Correspondence. 

13. Approval of Bills. 

14. Staff Reports.  

(a) Attorney. The Agenda for this meeting was posted on the window outside the meeting 
room at 3121 West March Lane, Stockton, California, at least seventy-two (72) hours preceding 
the meeting. 

15. Adjournment.  

This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code 
§54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting 
should contact Jean Knight at 209/948-8200 during regular business hours, at least fo✓ty-eight hours prior to the time of the 
meeting. 

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Trustees after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection in the office of the District Secretary at Neumiller & Beardslee, 3121 West March Lane, Suite 100, 
Stockton, California during normal business hours. 

#1262752v1<Active> - 4-3-19 RD 1608 Agenda 



AGENDA PACKET 
RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1608 

April 3, 2019 

ITEM COMMENTARY 

1. Self-explanatory. 

2. Please see attached. 

3. Self-explanatory. 

4.b. Please see attached. 

5. Please see attached. 

6. Self-explanatory. 

7. Self-explanatory. 

8. Self-explanatory. 

9. Self-explanatory. 

10. Please see attached. 

11. Please see attached. 

12. Self-explanatory. 

13. Self-explanatory. 

14. Self-explanatory. 

15. Self-explanatory. 

1253325-1 



ITEM 2 

1253325-1 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 1608 
HELD WEDNESDAY, MARCH 6, 2019 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 1608 was called to order at 
8:00 a.m. by President Michael Panzer on March 6, 2019, at the law offices of Neurniller & 
Beardslee, 509 W Weber Avenue, 5th  Floor, Stockton, California. 

TRUSTEES PRESENT WERE: 

MICHAEL PANZER 
BRETT THOLBORN 
DAN MacDONNELL 

OTHERS PRESENT WERE: 

DANIEL SCHROEDER 
ANDY PINASCO 
CHRIS NEUDECK 
JEAN L. KNIGHT 
JOE BRYSON 
JUDITH BUETHE 
BOB BENTZ 
ELVIA TRUJILLO 

1. Public Comment. Trustee Panzer reported that behind his house in the levee it is 
completed matted across with penny wart. A pretty large biomass. He also reported that 
he noticed that Trustee Tholborn ran the last meeting from 8:04 to 9:04, only one hour. 
He said he didn't think he'd ever done it in that short of time. 

2. Approval of Minutes. Minutes of the regular meeting of February 6, 2019. After 
review: 

It was moved, seconded (B. Tholborn D. MacDonnell) and 
unanimously carried by the Trustees of Reclamation District 1608 
that the minutes of the regular meeting of February 6, 2019 be 
approved as read. 

3. Financial Report. Review, discuss, and accept financial report. Secretary Knight 
presented the financial report. She discussed the assessments credited to the District's 
account this last month and said the District account had more toward this category than 
had been budgeted for. She noted she had called the Auditor's office and their records 
show their assessments were similar to last year but monies had come in from other 
sources. The conclusion is that the direct assessments (those that are generated by the 
District to some property owners, such as Lincoln Unified School District) must have 
come in and increased this amount more than had been expected. Trustee Panzer 
comments that it is the first time that cash on hand is over 2 million dollars. The 

1258452-1 



Engineer said that it won't be long before that fund reduces in size (once the sediment 
removal begins). After discussion, 

It was moved, seconded (B. Tholborn D. MacDonnell) and 
unanimously carried by the Trustees of Reclamation District 1608 
that the Financial Report, as presented be approved. 

4. Engineer's Report. Request for directions and approvals. 
(a) Consider new permits requests from homeowners. 

1. 3743 Hatchers Circle, APN 098-020-590-000 
Owners Mr. Kevin & Mrs. Danielle Worley — Review applicant for 
installation of an in ground swimming pool. See below in engineer's own 
report. 

(b) Sediment Removal Project 

Chris Neudeck reported that the sediment removal project is ready to move forward. 
Details of the project are listed in Exhibit E of the Engineer's Report. He said that the 
fatal flaw this year is if the District can get a permit to do the work this calendar year. 
Due to the 2 week government shutdown, it is causing 6-9 month delays on all actions. 
This project is not in their line of work yet. The engineers will know relatively soon. If 
there are not delays, they could be dredging this fall. The two actions that need to take 
place are set out above. 

1. Authorize President to execute Reclamation District No. 684 encroachment 
permit.  

An encroachment permit, included within the agenda packet, need to be executed. 
There was discussion about the Reclamation District No. 684 Encroachment 
Permit. After discussion, 

It was moved, seconded (D. MacDonnell/B. Tholborn) 
and unanimously carried by the Trustees of Reclamation 
District 1608 that the Encroachment Permit be approved 
and that the President be authorized to sign it on behalf 
of the District. 

2. Authorize President to approve additional premium amount for increasing 
District's umbrella policy from $3 million to $4 million - see action below in 
engineer's report. Attorney Andy Pinasco presented this item and said with 
the additional work for the sediment removal project, the District needed to 
increase its umbrella policy from $3 million to $4 million. The $4 million 
will only take effect when the District needs to go to this amount. After 
discussion, 

It was moved, seconded (D. MacDonnell/B. Tholborn) 
and unanimously carried by the Trustees of Reclamation 
District 1608 that the District be authorized to approve 

2 

1250204-1 



additional premium amount for increasing its umbrella 
policy from $3 million to $4 million. The $4 million will 
only take effect when the District needs to go to this 
amount. 

From Engineer's Own Report: 

I. PLAN Review 

A. Mr. Kevin & Mrs. Danielle Worley 
3743 Hatchers Circle 
Index No 90, Lot 1981 
APN 098-020-590-000 

Review application for installation of an in ground swimming pool. The Worleys 
submitted two plans. The first plan was for a pool that was closer to the residence, 
but it turns out that he had a high pressure sewer pipe in that area. After 
reconsideration, it was determined (similar to other homes in the area) that the pool 
was better positioned if it was further behind the house but still within the required 
distances from the levee. It will be 22 feet off the toe of the levee and on the eastern 
property line. The owner has been very forthright and worked well with the 
engineers and they also submitted a land survey because of the issues. The Board 
was okay with the plans and wanted to make sure the 2 conditions noted on the 
application were included in the proposal. They did note that the owners may need to 
dewater as the water table is a slight bit lower in Five Mile Slough than it is in 
Fourteen Mile Slough. As a side note, the Worleys ended up putting a drive through 
garage to the backyard. Therefore, 

It was moved, seconded (B. Tholborn/D. MacDonnell) that the 
permit request for an in ground pool for Kevin and Danielle 
Worley at 3743 Hatcher Circle, Stockton, CA 95219, Index No 
90, Lot 1981, APN 098-020-590-000 approved with the condition 
that the owners 1) comply with Reclamation District 1608 Levee 
Encroachment Standards; and 2) submit new application for any 
future encroachment within 10 (10) feet of levee toe. 

B. Review Status of Annual Levee Inspection of the District's Levee system 
and consideration of on-going O&M by individual lot owners along the 
levee. Chris Neudeck reported that the annual levee inspection has been 
completed and he will be submitting the report at the next meeting. His 
general observation is that compliance is substantially better and the land 
owners are acknowledging RD1608 staff are out keeping an eye on the 
area within the District In the two years the engineers have been with the 
District, it's been a steep curve to get to this point and Engineer Neudeck 
said he is pleased and likes seeing this compliance. 

3 

1250204-1 



II. FEMA MAPPING STATUS 

Engineer Neudeck reported he is disappointed in FEMA. He said he has the LOMR 
process down but doesn't think FEMA does. Kjeldsen, Sinnock & Neudeck did a 
whole metes and bounds for the entire perimeter of the lake for them to map it and to 
get detail. They ran into troubles this last week and are trying to get a status report. 
He said they need to know exactly where we are and getting outside people to talk to 
you is difficult. He was finally able to talk to Eric Simmons, a senior staff person and 
then Mike Clancy, a consultant side senior level. 

What has happened since the last meeting was the Lake Boundary Metes and Bounds 
Descriptions were completed and submitted to FEMA on February 28th. FEMA 
commented on the metes and bounds description and requires that we identify the land 
to be removed rather than focusing on the lake boundary. Kjeldsen Sinnock has met 
with FEMA reviewers to determine their exact requirements and will resubmit an 
updates metes and bounds description of affected lots surrounding the Lake per FEMA 
requirements. Kjeldsen, Sinnock is looking to wrap this up in the next several days. 
They would still like SJAFCA to look at this on a regional basis. He said it has taken 
much longer than ever anticipated. There is a SJAFCA meeting the afternoon of this 
meeting. Mr. Neudeck and attorney Schroeder will be there as well as Trustee Dan 
MacDonnell. It is an open public meeting, 

III. SEDIMENT REMOVAL PROJECT (see above in agenda) 

5. Levee Superintendent Report. Request for directions and approvals. Joe Byson gave 
his superintendent's report. He noted there has been high water tide and thinks we'll see 
higher with snow melt. He noted with respect to the gates for the levee inspection there 
were bad locks on about 10 of the locks. Chris Neudeck will be starting to write 
homeowners to bring their gate into compliance and make the swingable. On item 15, in 
Mr. Bryson's report, he said the costs of repairing the cut fences could amount to 5 or 6 
thousand dollars. 

6. Public Hearing. Ordinance Increasing the Compensation for Meeting Attendance 

(a) Adopt Ordinance 2019-01 Establishing Trustee Compensation for Meeting 
Attendance. Attorney Andy Pinasco discussed the process for the public hearing 
and said the District needed to open the public hearing for the consideration of 
establishing compensation for meeting attendance of the Trustees. Trustee 
Michael Panzer opened the public hearing at 9:52 a.m. He asked if there were 
any questions. The increase for the Trustees could not be more than 5% per year 
which would amount to $11.75 per meeting for a total of $246.75 per meeting. 
Resident Bob Bentz had a question about this procedure and asked how it came 
about. The question was responded to that the District was responsible for 
publishing the notice for two consecutive weeks in The Record. His only 
response was that we get what we paid for. After this question and answer, the 
public hearing was closed. At this time the action was presented and 

4 

1250204-1 



It was moved, seconded (B. Tholborn/D. MacDonnell) 
and unanimously carried by the Board of Trustees of 
Reclamation District 1608 that Ordinance 2019-01 
Establishing Trustee Compensation for Meeting 
Attendance be approved. 

7. Insurance. Delegate authority to approve proposal to renew District's JPRIMA  
Insurance Policy for the 2019-2020 policy year. Andy Pinasco presented this item. He 
also reported that the liability premium for the District went down about $600. The 
policy contains the District liability policy and the auto (truck) policy. Two invoices are 
presented and although the liability went down $500, the auto went up 5%. After 
discussion, 

It was moved, seconded (B. Tholborn/D. MacDonnell) and 
unanimously carried by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation 
District 1608 that the Trustees delegated authority to Secretary 
Jean Knight to renew the District's JPRIMA Insurance Policy for 
the 2019-2020 policy year. 

8. Report by Trustees on meetings attended and up coming meetings. Request for 
direction. Dan MacDonnell reported that he had attended the February 6th  SJAFCA 
meeting. He had noted that they elected a public person onto their Board and increased 
the board from 8 to 9 for voting purposes. Chris Neudeck said the process to get 
someone onto the Board was pretty rigorous. Trustee MacDonnell also said he would 
be going to today's SJAFCA meeting. 

9. Report and possible action on Progress of Tasks Assigned at Previous Board 
Meetings. 

(a) Newsletter. — It was suggested the District send out a letter to property owners who 
are on levee and talking about levee encroachment standards. Then it was suggested 
this information could be included in the newsletter. Another item that was discussed 
was the sediment removal timing. It can be language that states there were delays due 
to the government shutdown and permitting may delay the sediment removal from 
2019 to 2020. Language about the beavers would also be helpful and Mr. Schroeder 
suggested language similar to the June 2017 newsletter. Other items included 
maintenance of the gates, permit procedures and also to present a positive newsletter 
stating that the annual levee inspection found noticeable improvement from previous 
years. It will also note that those who were not in compliance would be getting a 
letter from the engineers. 

10. Discussion and direction on Short-Term and Long-Range Goals. Nothing to 
change. 

11. District Calendar. Discussion and direction. There was discussion that for weed 
spraying, the District now needs to get a permit and one of the requirements is that the 
District needs to notify schools within the Reclamation District. This has to be sent 

5 

1250204-1 



before April 1". Joe Bryson is going to contact our agriculture sprayer, Valley Green 
Pest Control, to take care of contacting the schools. 

12. Correspondence. None 

13. Closed Session. 

(a) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMACE EVALUATION 
Title: Levee Superintendent. 

(b) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMACE EVALUATION 
Title: District Secretary. 

14. Report out of Closed Session. A closed session was held. All Trustees were present. 
There was no reportable action regarding items 13a and 13b. 

15. Employment Agreements. Discussion and possible action regarding amendments to 
Levee Superintendent and District Secretary. Trustee Panzer suggested a $2.00 an hour 
increase for Joe Bryson. That would equal 5%. After discussion, 

It was moved, seconded (B. Tholborn/D. MacDonnell) and 
unanimously carried by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation 
District 1608 that the First Amended and Restated Employment 
Contract for Joe Bryson be amended to increase his salary from 
$37.00 an hour to $39.00 an hour. 

16. Secretary Knight's Employment Agreement was discussed and the Trustees felt an 
additional 5% would be good for her also. The increase will come in the way of 
increasing the vehicle allowance for Ms. Knight from $50 a month to $85 a month. 

It was moved, seconded (B. Tholborn/D. MacDonnell) and 
unanimously carried by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation 
District 1608 that the First Amended and Restated Contract for 
Secretarial Services be amended to increase her vehicle allowance 
from $50 to $85 a month. 

17. Approval of Bills. The Bills to be Paid List for March, 2019 was presented and 
reviewed and, 

Upon motion duly made, seconded (B. Tholborn/D. MacDonnell) 
and unanimously carried by the Trustees of Reclamation District 
1608, the Bills to be Paid List for March, 2019 as presented, was 
approved. 

18. Staff Reports. 

(a) Attorney. The Agenda for this meeting was posted on the window outside the 
meeting room at 3121 West March Lane, Stockton, California, at least seventy-two (72) 
hours preceding the meeting. 

6 

1250204-1 



19. Adjournment. The meeting adjourned at 9:55 a.m. 

Respttfully submitted, 

ean L Knight 
District Secretary 

7 

1250204-1 



ITEM 4.b. 

1253325-1 



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608 
RESOLUTION 2019-02 

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING DISTRICT ENGINEER AS AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE TO SIGN AND SUBMIT PERMIT APPLICATIONS FOR, AND ON 

BEHALF OF, DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Reclamation District No. 1608 ("District") desires to obtain permits for 
the Sediment Removal from a portion of 14-Mile Slough Project (the "Project") and designate its 
District Engineer, Chris Neudeck, as the authorized representative to sign and submit, for and on 
behalf of the District, any permits and permit applications for the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1) That the District Engineer, Chris Neudeck, is hereby authorized and directed to sign and 
submit, for and on behalf of the District, permits for the Project, including but not limited 
to: 

a. Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board — Dredging Permit 
Application 

b. United States Army Corps of Engineers — Form 4345 
c. California Department of Fish and Wildlife — Streambed Alteration Agreement 

Application 
d. State Land Commission — Application for Lease of State Lands 
e. Central Valley Flood Protection Board ("CVFPB") — Application for CVFPB 

Encroachment Permit 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1608 at 
a meeting thereof held on this 3rd  day of April, 2019, by the following vote, TO WIT: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTENTION: 

ABSENT: 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608 
A Political Subdivision of the 
State of California 

By:	  
MICHAEL PANZER, President 

ATTEST: 

JEAN KNIGHT, Secretary 
#1262739v1<Active> - Resolution 2019-02 Designating District Engineer as Authorize...doc 



CERTIFICATION 

I, JEAN KNIGHT, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1608, do hereby certify that the 
foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution of Reclamation District No. 1608 duly 
passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees thereof held on the PI  day of 
April, 2019. 

Dated: , 2019. 

JEAN KNIGHT, Secretary 
Reclamation District No. 1608 

1248120-I 

2 



ITEM 5 

1253325-1 



RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608 

RESOLUTION 2019-03 

RESOLUTION DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO APPROVE TEMPORARY 
ENCROACHMENT PERMITS 

WHEREAS, Reclamation District No. 1608 ("District") from time to time is requested 
to approve temporary encroachment permits and temporary entry permits (collectively referred 
to as "Temporary Permit") to allow entry and/or work by third parties on the levees within the 
District; and 

WHEREAS, Temporary Permit requests are the type of requests that are administrative 
in nature, though the District having limited staff, the Trustees are generally required to approve 
said permits; and 

WHEREAS, the Trustees desire to delegate authority to the President of the Board, or in 
the President's absence, any other Trustee to approve Temporary Permit requests subject to the 
recommendation of the District Engineer and District Counsel to avoid the necessity and delay 
of a District Board meeting to approve the requests; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRUSTEES OF RECLAMATION 
DISTRICT 1608 that it delegates to the President of the Board, or in the President's absence, 
any other Trustee the authority to approve requests for Temporary Permits with a duration not 
to exceed one year, subject to the recommendation of the District Engineer and District 
Counsel. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1608 
at a meeting thereof held on this Yel  day of April, 2019, by the following vote, TO WIT: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTENTION: 

ABSENT: 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1608 
A Political Subdivision of the 
State of California 

By:  
MICHAEL PANZER, President 

1190027-1 



ATTEST: 

JEAN KNIGHT, Secretary 

CERTIFICATION 

I, JEAN KNIGHT, Secretary of Reclamation District No. 1608, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution of Reclamation District No. 1608 
duly passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees thereof held on the 3rd 
day of April, 2019. 

Dated: , 2019. 

JEAN KNIGHT, Secretary 
Reclamation District No. 1608 

1190027-1 



ITEM 10 

1253325-I 



SHORT TERM GOALS 
January 9, 2019 

1. Sediment Removal Project. 

2. Participate in County TAC and stakeholder groups. Status: Ongoing. 

3. Work on slumping areas. In progress. 

4. Monitor SJAFCA meetings re Calaveras and Fourteen Mile Slough uncertified 
levees. 

5. Vegetation encroachments 

6. Annual Levee Inspection. 

7. Raising Elevation of South West Levee. 

LONG TERM GOALS 

1. CVFP Plan 
2. Lower San Joaquin River Feasibility Study 

1248137-1 



ITEM 11 

1253325-1 



RD 1608: MASTER CALENDAR 

JANUARY 

• Annual Review of Trustee Compensation 
• Update Levee Property DVD 

FEBRUARY 

• Send out Form 700s, remind Trustees of April 1 filing date 

MARCH 

• Yearly Employee Evaluations 
• Submit Verification Request Form (VRF) for the Annual Levee Maintenance Project to 

the California Department of Fish & Game. 
• Submit payment to the California Department of Fish & Game for prior year Levee 

Maintenance Project(s). 
• Spring Newsletter 

APRIL 

• April 1: Form 700s due 
• Letter to Property owners on levee regarding levee standards and permit requirements 
• Notify School District of Vegetation Control 

MAY 

• Draft Budget 
• Annual Department of Fish &Wildlife Maintenance Agreement Renewal. 
• Tour of Levee System 

JUNE 

• June 15: Provide notice/make available to the public, documentation/materials regarding 
determination of Appropriations (15 days prior to meeting at which Appropriations will 
be adopted) (Government Code §7910). 

• Approve Audit Contract for expiring fiscal year 
• Adopt the Final Budget 

JULY 

• Adopt Resolution for setting Appropriations and submit to County Assessor's Office. 

AUGUST 

• August 1: Deadline to certify assessments for tax-roll and deliver to County (duration of 
current assessment: FY 2025). 

• Send handbills for collection of assessments for public entity-owned properties 

1248130-1 



• In election years, opening of period for secretary to receive petitions for nomination of 
Trustees (75 days from date of election.) (Cal. Wat. Code §50731.5) 

• Submit End of the Year Financial Report. 

SEPTEMBER 

• In election years, last legal deadline to post notice that petitions for nomination of 
Trustees may be received (7 days prior to close of closure.) (Cal. Wat. Code §50731.5). 

• In election years, closing of acceptance of petitions for nomination of Trustees (54 days 
from date of election.) (Cal. Wat. Code §50731.5). 

OCTOBER 

• Publish Notice of Election, odd numbered years (once per week, 4 times, commencing at 
least 1 month prior to election.) 

• Fall Newsletter. 
• Update District Information Sheet. 
• Review District Emergency Supplies 
• Emergency Plan Review in 2018 (every three years thereafter) 

NOVEMBER 

• Election: to be held first Tuesday after first Monday of each odd-numbered year. 

DECEMBER 

• Review Emergency Plan. 
• New Trustee(s) take office, outgoing Trustee(s) term(s) end on first Friday of each odd-

numbered year. 
• Provide updated version of electronic copies of properties within District 

Term of Current Board Members: 

Name Term Commenced Term Ends 
Dan MacDonnell 2017 First Friday of Dec 2021 
Brett Tholborn 2015 First Friday of Dec 2019 
Michael Panzer 2015 First Friday of Dec 2019 

Assessment Expires 6/30/2025 
Emergency Operation Plan Review — September 2019 
Reclamation District Meetings 

• First Wednesday of each month, at 8:00 A.M. 
at the offices of: 
Neumiller & Beardslee 
3121 W. March Lane, Suite 100 
Stockton, California 95219 

2 

1248130-1 


